ADC test data evaluation program for MATLAB

User's manual



Version 4.6

Tamás Virosztek (virosztek@mit.bme.hu)

Table of contents

1	Introduction	4
	1.1 Scope	4
	1.2 What's new?	4
2	Installation	5
3	Getting started	5
4	Description of measurements	8
	4.1 Loading an existing measurement descriptor	9
	4.2 Creating a new measurement descriptor	9
	4.3 Editing an existing measurement descriptor	9
	4.4 Batch import of measurement descriptors	9
	4.5 Batch export of measurement descriptors	0. 0
	4.0 Saving a measurement descriptor	.U 0
	4.7 Oreating a new simulated measurement descriptor	.0
5	Evaluation of measurements 1	1
	5.1 Histogram test $\ldots \ldots \ldots$	1
	5.2 Four parameters sine wave fitting test $\ldots \ldots \ldots$.1
	5.3 Maximum likelihood estimation of signal and ADC parameters 1	.3
	5.3.1 Getting initial signal parameter estimators	.4
	5.3.2 Progress of optimization: iteration cycles	.4
	5.3.3 Results of optimizitaion: comparison of ML and LS estimators 1	.6
	5.4 Approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation of signal and quantizer pa-	7
	rameters	.7 00
	5.5 FF1 test. analysis in the frequency domain	10
6	Calculation of the likelihood (log-likelihood) function and the first and second	
	order derivatives 2	2
	6.1 The likelihood and log-likelihood function	22
	6.2 First order derivatives	24
	6.3 Second order derivatives	25
	$6.4 I(1,1) \dots \dots$	25
	$6.5 1(1,2) \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots $	25
	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	25 26
	$0.1 1(1,4) \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots $	20 26
	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	01 20
	(1,2,2)	10 26
	$6.10 \ 1(2,5) \ \dots \ $	10 17
	$6.12 I(2.5) \dots \dots$	27
	6.13 I(3.3)	27
	6.14 I(3,4)	27
	6.15 I(3,5)	28
	$6.16 I(4,4) \dots \dots$	28
	$6.17 I(4,5) \dots \dots$	28
	6.18 $I(5,5)$	28

6.19	I(1,l+5)																						29
6.20	I(2,l+5)																						29
6.21	I(3,l+5)												•				•				•	•	29
6.22	I(4,l+5)												•				•				•	•	29
6.23	I(5,l+5)												•										30
6.24	I(m+5,l+	-5)											•										30
6.25	I(l+5, l+5)	5).																					30

1 Introduction

1.1 Scope

This software is a MATLAB toolbox with graphical user interface: a collection of functions which can be executed in MATLAB environment. This toolbox provides the implementation of the following algorithms used in ADC testing:

- Four parameter sine wave fitting method described in standard IEEE-1241
- Maximum likelihood (ML) estimation of signal and ADC parameters (with sinusoidal excitation signal)
- Approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation signal and ADC parameters (with sinusoidal excitation signal)
- Histogram test using sinusoidal excitation signal
- FFT test

Furthermore the toolbox contains a simple tool to generate simulated measurement data: this possibility is useful to test and compare the fitting algorithms.

1.2 What's new?

Compared to the latest release of ADCTest toolbox (ver. 4.5), version 4.6 contains minor bug fixes and unified notation regarding approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation of quantizer and signal parameters.

Compared to the earlier version of ADCTest toolbox (ver. 4.4) the main new feature of version 4.5 is the approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation of quantizer and excitation signal parameters. This method parameterizes the integral nonlinearity of the quantizer under test and optimizes the ML cost function with respect to the parameters of the excitation signal and the parameters of the quantizer nonlinearity as well. This new feature is detailed in subsection 5.4

Compared to the earlier versions of ADCTest toolbox (ver. 4.1, 4.2, 4.3), the most important new feature is the extended cost function evaluator (EvaluateCFExtended.m) in maximum likelihood estimation of ADC and signal parameters. This new function calculates the entire gradient (size: $2^b + 4$) and Hessian matrix of the ML cost function (size: $(2^b + 4) \cdot (2^b + 4)$). The Hessian matrix provides the full Fisher information regarding the estimation of code transition levels and signal parameters. This way the toolbox calculates the Cramér-Rao Lower Bound for the covariance of all estimators. The most important values of the CRLB can be displayed in the GUI at the comparison of the results of ML and LS estimation using the 'Show CRLB' pushbutton (see subsection 5.3.3 and figure 13).

Compared to the earlier versions of ADCTest (ver 3.1 3.2 3.3) the most important new feature is the implementation of maximum likelihood (ML) parameter estimation to sinusoidal excitation signal [2]. The estimation of the converter's static transfer characteristic via histogram test is also a new possibility in this toolbox. This method is based on [3]. The software has been expanded with FFT test function. The simulated measurement generator tool is a side-effect of the development process.

2 Installation

- 1. Download the latest version of address toolbox from the project site ([7]) in a zip file.
- 2. Extract the zip file to a folder used to store MATLAB toolboxes e. g. C:\Program Files\MATLAB\toolbox
- 3. Start MATLAB.
- 4. Add the directory (where you have installed the toolbox) to MATLAB search path using the *File->Set Path* menu or the *addpath* command.
- 5. Type *adctest* to the MATLAB command line to launch the GUI.

3 Getting started

Once the toolbox is launched, the main window appears (figure 1).

🚺 AD	CTest 4.2	2 Main V	√indow									
<u>File</u>	<u>dit ⊻</u> iew	Insert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	Help	ADCTest Help					2
Г					Descripto	r select	tor				Option	s
	Sim_	_b8_s10k	_f97Hz_	_A120FS					-		Quit	
Г				Me	asueremer	nt infori	mation				Import	
					Descri	ption:					Import	
	Simulate The ADC The sine	d measur : under te : wave ha	ement d est is an as 97 fui	escriptor. 8 bit ideal (I periods,	quantizer.				*		Export	
	the reco The sine	rd contair wave sl	ns 1e4 s ightly ov	amples. erdrives th	e ADC und	ler test	:				Load	
	No noise	added to	o the exi	citation sigr	nal				-		Save	
	Model:			1	1/A		Channel #:		1	1	Delete	
	Serial #:			1	√A		Bits:		8	3	Delete	
Γ				P	rocessing	possibi	lities			_	New	
			(Classify an	d process	measu	rement record				Edit	
L												
					Descri	ptor ha	s been loadéd si	uccessfully				

Figure 1: Main window of the toolbox

On the right side of the window the following data handling options are available:

- Importing multiple measurement descriptors from wokspace
- Exporting multiple measurement descriptors to workspace
- Loading a single measurement descriptor
- Saving the current measurement descriptor

- Deleting the current measurement descriptor
- Creating a new measurement descriptor
- Editing an exising measurement descriptor

At the bottom of the window the "Classify and process measurement record" pusbutton appears. Using this pushbutton user can reach the classification dialog box. This window shows the classification results with respect to the following test methods:

- Four parameter sine wave fit in LS sense
- Maximum likelihood estimation of signal and ADC parameters
- Approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation of signal and ADC parameters
- Histogram test of the ADC using sinusoidal excitation signal
- FFT test of the ADC

The result of classification can be

- Appropriate
- Appropriate with restrictions
- Inappropriate

Classification window appears in figure 2

Step 1: classification of measurement record	l i			
Test methods and classification				
Time domain sine wave fit in LS sens	se: With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform LS fit
Frequency domain analisys (FFT test)	: With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform FFT test
Histogram test:	Appopriate	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform histogram test
Sine wave fit using ML estimation:	With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform ML fit
Reduced parameter ML estimation:	With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform RPML fit
I	Export evaluation	on results to HTML		
	Coheren	ce analysis		
Help Number samo	er of Greates ndent divi	t common sor of	Probability of coherence [%]	For histogram test use
Selection 1: 285	53	1	100.00	All samples (default)
Selection 2: 998	36	1	15.38	Show selections
Selection 3: 142	77	1	100.00	

Figure 2: Classification of measurement record

If a measurement record is "Appropriate" or "Appropriate with restrictions" to process in a certain way, the data can be evaluated using the active pushbuttons ("Perform …")on the right side. Possible warnings can be displayed using the "Show warnings" pushbutton. If the measurement record is inappropriate to process, an error message can be read using the "Show errors" pushbutton. The evaluation results can be exported to a HTML document using the "Export results to HTML" pushbutton. A typical HTML report appears in figure 3

pa view mistory pookmarks Tools Tielp								
CTest Toolbox - Measurement E × 🕂								
6 file:///C:/Users/tamas/Documents/MATLAB/adc_wizard/results/	ults.html			⊽ C ^e 🔡 - typical	٩	☆	Ê	₽ _1
	Meas	surement Ev	aluation	Results 0-Sep-2014				
vice Under Test				-				
el:								
1 number 382942PA								
her of hits:								
<u> </u>								
Dynamic property	Using LS fit	Using ML fit						
Effective Number of Bits (ENOB):	8.00	8.00						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD):	51.44 dB	45.48 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test)))	45.48 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test Property	51.44 dB	45.48 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test) Property Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to)) ; carrier (dBc):	45.48 dB Value 23.98 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test) Property Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to	carrier (dBc):	45.48 dB Value 23.98 dB 23.16 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test) Property Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Estimation of static transfer character	SI.44 dB carrier (dBc): the full scale (dBFS) ristic (histogram	45.48 dB Value 23.98 dB 23.16 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test Property Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Estimation of static transfer character Property	51.44 dB) carrier (dBc): the full scale (dBFS) ristic (histogram Minimum [LSB]	45.48 dB Value 23.98 dB 23.16 dB						
Signal to Noise and Distortion Ratio (SINAD): Frequency domain analysis (FFT test Property Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Spurious-Free Dynamic Range (SFRD) relative to Estimation of static transfer character Property Integral nonlinearity (INL):	51.44 dB carrier (dBc): the full scale (dBFS) ristic (histogram Minimum [LSB] -0.03	45.48 dB Value 23.98 dB 23.16 dB t test) Maximum [LSB] 0.03						

Figure 3: Evaluation results exported to a HTML report

The classification window also provides a feature called coherence analysis. The toolbox examines the measurement record and estimates the frequency via least squares fitting in the frequency domain (using Blackman-Harris windows). Based on this frequency estimator the algorithm suggests 3 selections of the measurement record which are coherent with a large probability. In this case coherence means to fulfill the Crabone-Chiorbloi conditions [5] and the probability of coherence is calculated using the confidence interval of the frequency estimator and the strict limits provided by the Carbone-Chiorboli condition. This coherence analysis is based on [6]. The selections are plotted in a dialog box as well (see figure 4).



Figure 4: Graphical display of the coherent parts of the measurement record

4 Description of measurements

The description of measurements is realized using XML files since version 3.3. The proper schema definition of these XML files is available on the project's web site ([7]). These descriptors have mandatory and optional fields. The descriptors must contain

- The name of the measurement: a short but informative title. Usually used to be the filename of the XML
- The model of the ADC under test
- The serial number of the ADC under test
- The resolution (bit number) of the ADC under test
- The measurement data: the record of the ADC's output (in digital codes).

The descriptor also may contain the following information:

- Comment: a more detailed description of measurement
- Channel: useful if the ADC under test is a multi-channel device
- Parameters: a feature to support test runs. In case of simulated measurement the original signal parameters and the ADC's static transfer characteristic (INL vector) can be saved. Thus accuracy of parameter estimation can be calculated using the original and the fitted values.

4.1 Loading an existing measurement descriptor

This function is available from main window, using the Load pushbutton. If the XML file is deficient, the load function returns error messages or warnings: errors, when the missing fields are mandatory, and warnings if the missing fields are optional.

4.2 Creating a new measurement descriptor

This function is available from the main window, using the New pushutton. A dialog box appears (figure 5), where all properties of the measurement descriptor can be set.

Add new descriptor						x
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>I</u> nsert <u>T</u> o	ols <u>D</u> esktop <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp					Ľ
	—— General information ————]		— Measurement Data		
Name:	Sim_b8_s10k_f97Hz_A95FS_INL2LSB_noise		Source of data vector:	Simulated measureme	nt 💌	
Comment:	Simulated measurement descriptor. The ADC under test is a slightly nonlonear 8 bit quantizer. INL < 2 LSB The sine wave has 97 full periods,	•		Import	measurement data	
Model:	N/A					
Serial Number:	N/A					
Channel:	1					
Number of bits:	8					
		Imported measu	irement data			
0.8 - 0.6 - 0.4 - 0.2 -						
0						
0 0.1	0.2 0.3 0.4	0.5	0.6	0.7 0.8	0.9 1	
	ОК		Cancel			
		Edit new de	scriptor			

Figure 5: Add new descriptor dialog box

In case of real measurement the ADC output data vector can be loaded from MATLAB workspace. In case of simulated measurement a simulation tool can be started (see 4.7).

4.3 Editing an existing measurement descriptor

This function is available from main window, using the Edit pushbutton. The dialog box is similar to the dialog box "Add new descriptor", but the original properties and values of the descriptor are displayed in the appropriate fields of the window.

4.4 Batch import of measurement descriptors

This function is available from main window, using the Import pushbutton. A variable from MATLAB workspace, that contains multiple descriptors can be imported to the toolbox. Note that no software component checks that your variable is appropriate: if the format of the data in this variable is not matchingh, strange errors can occur. Used to perform test runs.

4.5 Batch export of measurement descriptors

This function is available from main window, using the Export pushbutton. All the measurement descriptors that are currently in the memory, will be copied to the workspace. The variable specified by the user is a cell array, each cell contains one measurement.

4.6 Saving a measurement descriptor

This function is available from main window, using the Save pushbutton. The filename suggested by the save dialog box is the name of the descriptor. Keeping this file naming convention is recommended.

4.7 Creating a new simulated measurement descriptor

This function is available from dialog box "Add new descriptor". If the "Source of the data vector" is changed from "Real measurement" to "Simulated measurement", a pushbutton "Simulate Measurement" appears. This button launches the simulation tool (figure 6).

P	erform	ing sin	nulated r	measure	ement					_	
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	Insert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp	Simulation Help			Ľ
		Nun	nber of bi	its:			10		Determination of INL:	Edit here	•
		Nun	nberofs	amples:			10000		INL from workspace:		
		Nun	nber of p	eriods:			97		Shape of INL:	None	•
		Des	cription r	nethod:	Amplit	ude & Phase	• •		Magnitude of INL shape (in LSB):	
		Am	plitude:				0.475		Type of noise on INL	None	•
		Pha	se [DEG]	:			60		Deviation of noise on INL	(in LSB):	
		DC	compone	ent:			0.5				
		Std	of noise:			0.0	6/1024				
					s	imulate mea	suremer	nt	Cancel]	

Figure 6: Simulate measurement dialog box

In this dialog box both the excitation signal parameters and the ADC parameters can be set. The sine wave can be described in two ways: amplitude and initial phase, or cosine and sine coefficient. The nonlinearity can be imported from workspace (e.g. the nonlinearity of a previously measured ADC), or can be assembled in this dialog box. The nonlinearity assembler uses two components: a component that determines the nature of the nonlinearity (e.g. a rasied cosine (Hann) window), and a component that adds some noise to the INL vector. This way the values of transition levels will not be so regular: the transfer characteristic will be more lifelike. Not that

the "Deviation of noise on INL" means the standard deviation of noise in both cases: so in the case of normally distributed noise, as in the case of uniformly distributed noise.

5 Evaluation of measurements

5.1 Histogram test

Histogram test is the estimation of the static transfer characteristic of the ADC under test. The test uses the histogram of measured data and calculates the INL estimators described in [4]. A formula about the accuracy of these estimators is given in [3].



Figure 7: Result window of histogram testing

5.2 Four parameters sine wave fitting test

To perform four parameter sine wave fit according to standard IEEE-1241-2010, some parameters of optimization must be set. Before starting the optimization, a dialog box appears (figure 8).

	EE fou	ır parar	meter sir	ne wave	fit					- 0 X
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	<u>I</u> nsert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp			Ľ
			Sett	ing bou	ndaries			4	Advanced settings of LS f	it
	First (used sai	mple of r	ecord:		1	Metho	od:	IEEE-1241-2010 Annex B	•
	Lasti	used sai	mple of r	ecord:		10000	Max.	number	of iterations:	Default
	Upper	' limit (A	DC code)):		254	Max.	number	of function evaluations:	Default
	Lowe	er limit (A	ADC code	e):		1	Termi	nation to	Default	
						Perfor	m LS fit and show resu			
								_		

Figure 8: Settings window for 4 parameter LS fit

On the left side, the boundaries of the record can be set. Using "First sample of record" and "Last sample of record" the useless parts of recording (like initial transients) can be cut. "Upper boundary" and "Lower boundary" determines the code range, where the samples are taken into consider. This function is used to throw samples where the ADC is overdriven. Not that the default lower boundary is the lowest code of ADC + 1, the default upper boundary is the highest code of ADC - 1.

On the right side the parameters of optimization can be set. The following fitting methods are available:

- IEEE-1241-2010 Annex B: performs the method described in [1]
- LsqNonlin: calls the built-in nonlinear least squares solver function of MATLAB Optimization toolbox. This method is more time-consuming, but can be more robust in some cases.

In case of LsqNonlin, three other parameters of optimization can be set:

- Maximal number of iterations
- Maximal number of cost function evaluations
- Termination tolerance on cost function

The results of the sine wave fitting appear in the results window (figure 9).



Figure 9: Results window for 4 parameter LS fit

This dialog box displays the estimated sine wave parameters (amplitude, frequency, initial phase, DC component), and the ADC parameters: effective number of bits (ENOB), and signal to noise and distortion ratio (SINAD). ADC parameters calculated from the difference between the fitted sine wave and the measurement data, the residuals. The residuals are displayed in two ways:

- Mod T plot: the residuals are sorted and displayed according to their location in the phase space. Phase axis is displayed between 0 and 2π . A reference sine wave is also plotted: this is a sine wave with the estimated phase of the excitation signal.
- Histogram of residuals: to observe statistical moments of the residuals.

5.3 Maximum likelihood estimation of signal and ADC parameters

To perform maximum likelihood (ML) estimation of signal and ADC parameters, it is necessary to use the so the results of histogram test, as the results of sine wave fitting in least squares (LS) sense. The histgram test provides the transition level estimators. Note that the transition level estimators do not change during the optimization, according to the problems described in [4]. Only the five signal parameters (four sine wave paramaters, and the standard deviation of noise on the input) are optimized, keeping the transition levels constant. If the histogram is rough according to the low number of samples in a record, the transition level estimators can be inaccurate. The main source of inaccuracy of ML signal parameter estimators is the inaccuracy of transition levels. Before performing ML optimization make sure that there are enough number of samples in record using the formula described in [3].

The LS sine wave fitting is used to get initial estimators of the sine wave parameters efficiently.

5.3.1 Getting initial signal parameter estimators

Although the result of this LS fitting is used only to start the ML optimization the parameters of this fitting also must be set. This dialog box is very similar to the one shown in 5.2. Both the input GUI elements and their function are the same. Note that the samples that are thrown beacuse of the amplitude or time limits will not be considered neither in the LS nor in the ML fit. The initial estimators appear in the dialog box of ML estimation before the iteration is started (figure 10).

	aximu	ım Likel	lihood p	aramet	er estimati	on					
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	<u>I</u> nsert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp				'¥
			Progre	ss of e	stimation:				Advanced settings		
	Cosin	e coeffi	cient (A):	:		0.451	48	Max. number (of iterations:	30	
	Sine d	oefficie:	nt (B):			-0.164	37	Max. number (of cost function evaluations:	60	
	DC co	mponen	t (C):			0.500	104	Termination to	lerance on cost function:	0.000e+000	
	Norma	alized fr	eq. (f/fs)	:		9.700e-0	103				
	Std. d	eviation	of noise	: (sigma)	1	5.620e-0	103				
	Value	e of ML	cost fu	nction		N	aN				
			Furti	her Info	rmation						
	Lambo	da:				0.000e+0	100		Start iteration		
	Iteratio	on courr	ter:				0				
	Functi	ion evalı	uation co	unter:			0		Stop iteration		
									Reset		
									Compare ML vs LS		
					Initia	I estimators	calculate	d using 4 parameter L	Sfit		

Figure 10: ML estimation dialog box before the iteration is started

5.3.2 Progress of optimization: iteration cycles

The iteration can be started in the ML estimation dialog box using the "Start" pushbutton. The changed dialog box is shown on figure 11.

	laximu	ım Like	lihood P	aramet	er Estimati	on: step 1 (- 0 X	
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	Insert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp		لا ا
			Progre	ss of e	stimation:			Advanced settings	
	Cosin	e coeffi	cient (A)	:		0.451	48	Max. number of iterations:	30
	Sine c	oefficie	nt (B):			-0.164	37	Max. number of cost function evaluations:	60
	DC co	mponer	nt (C):			0.500	104	Termination tolerance on cost function:	0.000e+000
	Norma	alized fr	eq. (f/fs)	:		9.700e-0	103		
	Std. d	eviation	of noise	: (sigma))	5.620e-0	103		
	Value	e of ML	cost fu	nction		1.368e+0	04		
			Furti	her Info	rmation			F	
	Lambo	da:				1.141e+0	114	Pause iteration	
	Iteratio	on coun	ter:				1		
	Functi	ion eval	uation co	unter:			4	Stop iteration	
								Reset	
								Compare ML vs LS	
						Ρ	erforming it	erations	

Figure 11: ML estimation dialog box during the iteration

During the computation, the label and the function of this pushbutton changes to "Pause". The "Stop iteration" button is used to stop entire the optimization process. The "Reset" button resets the signal parameters to the initial values, and parameters of optimization can be set to other values. The advanced settings are the following:

- Maximum number of iterations: used to limit length of optimization.
- Maximum number of cost function evaluations: the length of an iteration cycle is not deterministic: depending on the behavior of the cost function there may be one ore more function and derivative evaluation in an iteration cycle. Limiting the number of function evaluations provides more precise time boundary.
- **Termination tolerance on cost function:** optimization terminates when the difference between the cost function in two consecutive iteration cycle is less than the tolerance specified here.

In the dialog box the the process of optimization can be traced. The actual values of parameter estimators, and the value of ML cost function is displayed in each iteration cycle. The constant that determines the size and direction of the Levenberg-Marquardt step ("lambda"), and the number of iterations and cost function evaluations also appear.

5.3.3 Results of optimizitaion: comparison of ML and LS estimators

After the optimization is performed both the LS and ML signal parameter estimators are available. The results can be compared in the results window shown on figure 12.



Figure 12: Comparison of ML and LS estimators

In this dialog box the estimated signal and ADC parameters appear. The amplitude and the DC component is displayed in ADC code units (LSB), and also in the percentage of the full scale (FS). The initial phase is displayed in degrees. The frequency of the sine wave is displayed relative to the sampling frequency. The effective number of bits (ENOB) is calculated using the difference between the record and the fitted sine wave (the residuals). Note that the ENOB calculated using the ML estimators cannot be higher than the ENOB calculated using the LS estimators, because the LS optimization minimizies the root mean square of the residuals, thus maximizes the ENOB value.

The residuals are displayed three ways in this window:

- **Residuals in linear time:** the residuals are displayed according to their position in the record.
- Mod T plot of residuals: the residuals are displayed according to their position in the phase space: phase position of each residual is calculated using the estimated frequency of the signal, and residuals are sorted with respect to this phase value. A reference sine wave is also diaplayed: the initial phase of this this sine wave is the estimated initial phase of the excitation signal.
- **Histogram of residuals:** histogram is calculated to observe statistical moments of residuals.

The linear time and the mod T plot of residuals do not appear in the same time: the content of the higher graph can be switched using a popup menu on the side of ML estimation. This switch changes the appearance of both sides of the window.

Using the "Show CRLB" pushbutton the most important calculated values of the Cramer-Rao Lower Bound regarding the estimated signal parameters appear in a dialog box (see figure 13). The CRLB values are scaled to units of LSB, and relative frequency (f/f_s)



Figure 13: Most important values of the calculated CRLB

5.4 Approximate maximum likelihood (AML) estimation of signal and quantizer parameters

This method parameterizes the integral nonlinearity of the quantizer under test and optimizes the ML cost function with respect to the parameters of the excitation signal and the parameters of the quantizer nonlinearity as well. In this version of ADCTest toolbox the integral nonlinearity of the quantizer is approximated using Fourier coefficients (15 real parameters). To perform AML estimation the user has to press the "Perform AML fit" pushbutton (see figure 14). The potential warnings or errors regarding AML fit can be read using the "Show warnings" and "Show errors" pushuttons. Note that if neither warnings nor errors appear, the corresponding pushbuttons are disabled.

孙 Step 1: clas	ssification of measurem	ent record				
- Test me	thods and classificatio	n				
Time	domain sine wave fit	in LS sense:	Appopriate	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform LS fit
Freq	uency domain analisys	(FFT test):	Appopriate	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform FFT test
Histo	gram test:		With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform histogram test
Sine	wave fit using ML esti	mation:	With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform ML fit
Appr	oximate ML (AML) esti	mation:	With restrictions	Show warnings	Show errors	Perform AML fit
			Export evaluatio	n results to HTML		
			Coheren	ce analysis		
	Help	Number of independent	Greates divis	t common sor of	Probability of coherence [%]	For histogram test use
		samples	Ja	ind N		All samples (default)
Se	lection 1:	10000		1	91.34	
6-	lastian 2	4433			87 57	Show coloctions
se	Selection 2: 4433				01.51	Show selections
Se	election 3:	5567		1	21.55	

Figure 14: How to choose AML fit

Choosing this option calls the standard 4-parameter least squares fit to achieve initial estimators for the excitation signal parameters. After setting the options and parameters of the LS fit (default values usually provide good performance) we can press the pushbutton entitled "Get initial estimators for approximate ML (AML) fit". This action starts the optimization process which can be followed (and interrupted if necessary) by the user via the GUI (see figure 15).



Figure 15: Optimization of the cost function for AML estimation

The results of the AML estimation are displayed in a dialog box (see figure 16). This dialog box itemizes the main parameters of the optimization process (number of iterations, number of cost function evaluations, duration of optimization, reason of termination, initial and final value of the cost function). The most important quality measures (the effective number of bits and the maximum integral nonlinearity) of the ADC under test are displayed as well. The estimated integral nonlinearity and the "Mod T" plot of the residuals (residuals of the sine wave fitting in the time domain) also appear in this dialog box.



Figure 16: Results of AML estimation

5.5 FFT test: analysis in the frequency domain

The frequency domain analysis investigates the Discrete Fourier Transform of the measurement record. DFT is performed using the Fast Fourier Transform (FFT) algorithm. Windowing in time domain is necessary to suppress spectral leakage in case of incoherent sampling. The user can specify the type of window: the default is the *Blackman* window, but also *Hann* and *3*-term Blackman-Harris windows can be applied. FFT test can be performed without windowing, choosing the None (rect) option.

The results provide information about the amplitudes and frequencies of the harmonics of the signal (up to 5 harmonics) relative to the carrier (base harmonic) and relative to the full scale of the ADC. The most important quantity calculated this way is the **Spurious-free dynamic** range (SFDR), that is provided relative to the carrier (dBc), and relative to the full scale (dBFS).

	FT Test	t											X
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	<u>I</u> nsert	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> esktop	<u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp						ъ.
						Freq	uency-d	omain analy	rsis				
		SFDR:			40.0	12 dBc			W	indow:	Blackman	•	
					40.4	3 dBFS							
		Comp	onent:		Frequenc	y (f/fs):		Amplitude	(rel. FS):	Amj	plitude (rel. d	arrier):	
		Carrier	:		9.700	00e-003		-0	.41 dBFS			0.00 dBc	
		2nd ha	rmonic:		1.940)0e-002		-70	.93 dBFS		-70	0.52 dBc	
		3rd har	monic:		2.910)0e-002		-40	.43 dBFS		-40	0.02 dBc	
		4th har	monic:		3.880	00e-002		-74	.60 dBFS		-74	4.19 dBc	
		5th har	monic:		4.850)0e-002		-55	.41 dBFS		-5:	5.00 dBc	
Amplitude [dBc]	50 -100 -150	0	0.02	0	04	0.06	0.08	0.1	0.12	0.14	0.16	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	

Figure 17: FFT test results window

6 Calculation of the likelihood (log-likelihood) function and the first and second order derivatives

6.1 The likelihood and log-likelihood function

For maximum likelihood estimation of ADC testing the following model has been developed. The converter is described with a set of code transition levels. Transition level T[k] is the value of the input voltage, that results code k - 1 with probability of 50%, and code k with probability of 50% as well. The N-bit quantizer provides codes from 0 up to $2^N - 1$, and has $2^N - 1$ transition levels. The reduced full scale of the converter is the voltage range between T[1] and $T[2^N - 1]$. Voltage values above the highest transition level result code $2^N - 1$ and voltages below the lowest transition level result code 0. Quantization can be described with a function q(x) where

$$q(x) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{if } x < T[1] \\ m, & \text{if } T[m] < x < T[m+1] \\ 2^N - 1, & \text{if } x > T[2^N - 1] \end{cases}$$
(1)

The sinusoidal excitation signal can be described with four parameters:

$$x(t) = A\cos(2\pi ft) + B\sin(2\pi ft) + C \tag{2}$$

where A is the cosine coefficient, B is the sine coefficient, and C denotes the DC component of the signal. The frequency of the sine wave is denoted with f. The electronic noise of the devices, and the imperfections of the measurement environment are modeled with additional noise on the excitation signal. The most manifest is to assume Gaussian noise with zero mean and σ standard deviation. Let n(t) denote the realization of the additive noise. In this model the spectrum of the noise is white, so $n(\tau_1)$ and $n(\tau_2)$ are independent, if $\tau_1 \neq \tau_2$.led with additional noise on the excitation signal. The most manifest is to assume Gaussian noise with zero mean and σ standard deviation. Let n(t) denote the realization of the additive noise. In this model the spectrum of the noise is white, so $n(\tau_1)$ and $n(\tau_2)$ are independent, if $\tau_1 \neq \tau_2$.

This noisy sine wave is quantized and sampled (the sequence is interchangeable), thus the output of the ADC can be described this way:

$$y(k) = q(x(t_k) + n(t_k)) \tag{3}$$

where t_k denotes the k_{th} sampling time moment (k = 1..M). The parameters of the model to be estimated to be estimated are the followings:

- The code transition levels of the quantizer: $T[1], T[2], ..., T[2^N 1]$
- The cosine coefficient of the sine wave: A
- The sine coefficient of the sine wave: B
- The DC component of the sine wave: C
- The frequency of the sine wave: f
- The standard deviation of noise on the excitation signal: σ

As uniform sampling is assumed (effects of incidental nonideal sampling are not considered in this model), the frequency of the sine wave can be described using the angular frequency normalized to the sampling frequency:

$$\theta = \omega T_s = 2\pi \frac{f}{f_s} \tag{4}$$

where T_s is the sampling time, and f_s denotes the sampling frequency. Thus the parameter vector to be estimated is the following:

$$\mathbf{p}^{T} = \begin{bmatrix} A & B & C & \theta & \sigma & T[1] & T[2] & \dots & T[2^{N} - 2] & T[2^{N} - 1] \end{bmatrix}$$
(5)

To express the likelihood of the parameters, it is necessary introduce a vector of discrete random variables, denoted by **Y**. Value Y(k) belongs to the k^{th} sample of the measurement record and can achieve 2^N values: it can be any of the output codes of the ADC form 0 to $2^N - 1$ with a given probability. These probabilities can be described using the error function:

$$\operatorname{erf}(x) = \frac{2}{\pi} \int_0^x e^{-z} \mathrm{d}z \tag{6}$$

$$P(Y(k) = 0) = \frac{1}{2} \left[erf\left(\frac{T[1] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{(2)}}\right) + 1 \right]$$
(7)

$$P(Y(k) = 2^{N} - 1) = \frac{1}{2} \left[1 - \operatorname{erf} \left(\frac{T[2^{N} - 1] - x(t_{k})}{\sigma \sqrt{2}} \right) \right]$$
(8)

$$P(Y(k) = l) = \frac{1}{2} \left[\operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[l+1] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) - \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[l] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) \right]$$
(9)

where $l = 1..2^{N}-2$

To avoid using three different cases it is useful to define two "virtual" transition levels of the ADC: $T[0] = -\infty$ and $T[2^N] = +\infty$. This way the value of Y(k) can be expressed in one equation:

$$P(Y(k) = l) = \frac{1}{2} \left[\operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[l+1] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) - \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[l] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) \right]$$
(10)

where $l = 0..2^N$ -1

The likelihood function for the entire measurement is:

$$L(\mathbf{p}) = \prod_{k=1}^{M} P(Y(k) = y(k))$$
(11)

where y(k) is the k^{th} sample of the digital record. Merging the equations above, one can express the likelihood function this way:

$$L(\mathbf{p}) = \prod_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{2} \left[\operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)+1] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) - \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) \right]$$
(12)

For computations it is feasible to define a cost function, which is the negative log-likelihood function:

$$CF(\mathbf{p}) = -\ln L(\mathbf{p}) = M \cdot \ln(2) - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \ln \left[\operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)+1] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) - \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(t_k)}{\sigma\sqrt{2}}\right) \right]$$
(13)

6.2 First order derivatives

To ease the expression of the formulas, let us use the following notation. Let $\arg(k)$ denote the argument of the natural logarithm function in the k^{th} element of the cost function. This means that $\arg(k)$ is two times larger than the probability of measuring y(k) for the k^{th} sample, assuming parameters **p**.

$$\arg(k) = \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)+1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right) - \operatorname{erf}\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)$$
(14)

The first order partial derivatives of the cost function are expressed below:

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left(e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k) + 1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} \right) \tag{15}$$

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\arg(k)} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left(e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k) + 1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} \right) \tag{16}$$

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial C} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left(e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k) + 1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} \right) \tag{17}$$

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \theta} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta}$$
(18)

where

$$\frac{\partial \arg(k)}{\partial \theta} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left(e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)+1]-x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)]-x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} \right)^2} (19)$$

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \sigma} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma}$$
(20)

where

$$\frac{\partial \arg(k)}{\partial \sigma} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left(e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{T[y(k)] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} - e^{-\left(\frac{T[y(k) + 1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{T[y(k) + 1] - x(k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} \right)$$
(21)

The partial derivatives with respect to transition levels are the followings:

$$\frac{\partial \mathrm{CF}}{\partial T[l]} = -\sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\arg(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \arg(k)}{\partial T[l]}$$
(22)

$$\frac{\partial \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\sqrt{\pi}}} \cdot e^{-\left(\frac{T[l]-x(k)}{\sqrt{2\sigma}}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{T[l]-x(k)}{\sigma^2}, & \text{if } \mathbf{y}(\mathbf{k}) = \mathbf{l} - \mathbf{1} \\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\sqrt{\pi}}} \cdot e^{-\left(\frac{T[l]-x(k)}{\sqrt{2\sigma}}\right)^2} \cdot \frac{T[l]-x(k)}{\sigma^2}, & \text{if } \mathbf{y}(\mathbf{k}) = \mathbf{l} \\ 0, & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(23)

6.3 Second order derivatives

The general form of the elements of the Fisher information matrix is the following:

$$I(\mathbf{p})_{i,j} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\arg^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \arg(k)}{\partial p_i} \cdot \frac{\partial \arg(k)}{\partial p_j} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\arg(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial p_i \partial p_j}$$
(24)

To ease notation let us use the following terms

$$Q_u(k) = \frac{T[y(k)+1] - A\cos(k\theta) - B\sin(k\theta) - C}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}$$
(25)

$$Q_l(k) = \frac{T[y(k)] - A\cos(k\theta) - B\sin(k\theta) - C}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}$$
(26)

Since the Fisher information matrix is symmetric, only the diagonal elements and the elements over the diagonal are itemized. The derivatives including the l^{th} code transition level (T[l]) appear int the $l + 5^{th}$ rows and columns respectively.

6.4 I(1,1)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \left(\frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A}\right)^2 - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A^2}$$
(27)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial A^2} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot Q_u(k) \cdot \frac{\cos^2(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2} - \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot Q_l(k) \cdot \frac{\cos^2(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(28)

6.5 I(1,2)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A \partial B} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A \partial B}$$
(29)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial A \partial B} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot Q_u(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2} - \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot Q_l(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(30)

6.6 I(1,3)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A \partial C} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A \partial C}$$
(31)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial A \partial C} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot Q_u(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2} - \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot Q_l(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(32)

6.7 I(1,4)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A \partial \theta} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A \partial \theta}$$
(33)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial A \partial \theta} = \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot Q_u(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)(A\sin(k\theta) \cdot k - B\cos(k\theta) \cdot k)}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \frac{\sin(k\theta) \cdot k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{\cos(k\theta)(A\sin(k\theta) \cdot k - B\cos(k\theta) \cdot k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{\cos(k\theta)(A\sin(k\theta) \cdot k - B\cos(k\theta) \cdot k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{\sin(k\theta) \cdot k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{\sin(k\theta) \cdot k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac{\sin(k\theta) \cdot k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \frac$$

$$-\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}}e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot Q_l(k) \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)(A\sin(k\theta) \cdot k - B\cos(k\theta) \cdot k)}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)}\frac{\sin(k\theta) \cdot k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}$$
(34)

6.8 I(1,5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A \partial \sigma} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A \partial \sigma}$$
(35)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial A \partial \sigma} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u^2(k)\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} -$$
(36)

$$-\frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l^2(k)\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}} -$$
(36)

6.9 I(2,2)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B^2}$$
(37)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial B^2} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k) \cdot \sin^2(k\theta))}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k) \cdot \sin^2(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(38)

6.10 I(2,3)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B \partial C} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B \partial C}$$
(39)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial B \partial C} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k) \cdot \sin(k\theta))}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(40)

6.11 I(2,4)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B \partial \theta} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B \partial \theta}$$
(41)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial B \partial \theta} = \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \cdot \frac{1}{\sqrt{2$$

$$-\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}$$
(42)

6.12 I(2,5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B \partial \sigma} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B \partial \sigma}$$
(43)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial B \partial \sigma} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u^2(k) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} + \tag{44}$$

$$+\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l^2(k) \cdot \sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2}$$
(44)

6.13 I(3,3)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial C^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C^2}$$
(45)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial C^2} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k)}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(46)

6.14 I(3,4)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial C \partial \theta} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C \partial \theta}$$
(47)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial C \partial \theta} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)}{2\sigma^2}$$
(48)

6.15 I(3,5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial C \partial \sigma} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C \partial \sigma}$$
(49)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(\mathbf{k})}{\partial C \partial \sigma} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u^2(k)}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}} + \tag{50}$$

$$+\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l^2(k)}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\sigma^2}}$$
(50)

6.16 I(4,4)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \theta^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta^2}$$
(51)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial \theta^2} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)^2}{2\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{A\cos(k\theta)k^2 + B\sin(k\theta)k^2}{\sqrt{2}\sigma} + \frac{1}{(52)} \cdot \frac{1$$

$$+\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)^2}{2\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{A\cos(k\theta)k^2 + B\sin(k\theta)k^2}{\sqrt{2}\sigma}$$
(52)

6.17 I(4,5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \theta \partial \sigma} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta \partial \sigma}$$
(53)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial \theta \partial \sigma} = \frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u^2(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} \cdot \frac{A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} \cdot \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} \cdot \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} \cdot \frac{2}{\sqrt{2}} - \frac{2}{$$

$$-\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l^2(k) \cdot (A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k)}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{A\sin(k\theta)k - B\cos(k\theta)k}{\sqrt{2}\sigma^2}$$
(54)

6.18 I(5,5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \sigma^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma^2}$$
(55)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial \sigma^2} = \frac{-4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_u^3(k)}{\sigma^2} + \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2(k)} \cdot \frac{2Q_u(k)}{\sigma^2} + \tag{56}$$

$$+\frac{4}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{Q_l^3(k)}{\sigma^2} - \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2(k)} \cdot \frac{2Q_l(k)}{\sigma^2}$$
(56)

6.19 I(1,l+5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial A \partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial A \partial T[l]}$$
(57)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial A \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_u^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{\cos(k\theta)}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_l^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(58)

6.20
$$I(2,l+5)$$

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial B \partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial B \partial T[l]}$$
(59)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial B \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_u^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{\sin(k\theta)}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_l^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(60)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial C \partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial C \partial T[l]}$$
(61)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial C \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_u^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_l^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(62)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \theta \partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \theta \partial T[l]}$$
(63)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial \theta \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{A \sin(k\theta)k - B \cos(k\theta)k}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_u^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{A \sin(k\theta)k - B \cos(k\theta)k}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_l^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(64)

6.23 I(5,l+5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial \sigma \partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial \sigma \partial T[l]}$$
(65)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial \sigma \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{4\sqrt{2}}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{Q_u}{\sigma^2} \cdot (1-Q_u) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{4\sqrt{2}}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{Q_l}{\sigma^2} \cdot (1-Q_l) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(66)

6.24 I(m+5,l+5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial T[m]\partial T[l]} = \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[m]} - \sum_{k=1}^{M} \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[m]\partial T[l]}$$
(67)

where

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial T[m] \partial T[l]} = \begin{cases} \frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial T[l]^2} & \text{if } m = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(68)

6.25 I(l+5,l+5)

$$\frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{CF}}{\partial T[l]^2} = \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}^2(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} \cdot \frac{\partial \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]} - \sum_{k=1}^M \frac{1}{\mathrm{arg}(k)} \cdot \frac{\partial^2 \mathrm{arg}(k)}{\partial T[l]^2} \tag{69}$$

$$\frac{\partial^2 \arg(k)}{\partial T[l]^2} = \dots \begin{cases} \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_u^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_u^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l - 1\\ -\frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-Q_l^2} \cdot \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \cdot (2Q_l^2 - 1) & \text{if } y[k] = l\\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(70)

References

- [1] IEEE Standard for Terminology and Test Methods for Analog-to-Digital Converters
- [2] Laśzló Balogh, István Kollár, Attila Sárhegyi, Maximum Likelihood Estimation of ADC parameters, Instrumentation and Measurement Technology Conference - IMTC 2010, Austin, USA, May 3-6, 2010
- [3] Jerome Blair, *Histogram Measurement of ADC nonlinerities Using Sine Waves*, IEEE Transactions on Instrumentation and Measurement Vol 43., No. 3. June 1994
- [4] Tamás Virosztek, MATLAB-based ADC testing with sinusoidal excitation signal (in Hungarian), B.Sc. Thesis, 2011.
- P. Carbone, G. Chiorboli; ADC sinewave histogram testing with quasi-coherent sampling. Proceedings of the 17th IEEE Instrumentation and Measurement Technology Conference, 2000. IMTC, 1-4 May 2000. ISBN: 0-7803-5890-2; DOI: 10.1109/IMTC.2000.846837
- [6] Pálfi Vilmos, Kollár István; Acceleration of ADC test with sine wave fit. IEEE Transactions On Instrumentation And Measurement 62:(5) pp. 880-888. (2013)
- [7] ADCTest project site: http://www.mit.bme.hu/projects/adctest